
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Regular Meeting 

April 21, 2020 - 7:00 PM  
Virtual Meeting 

 
Note: This meeting was held virtually, using Zoom video-teleconferencing technology. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Rudy called the meeting to order at 7:12 p.m. 

 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
    Mayor:                    Brian Rudy  
    Mayor Pro-Tem:     Mark Clark  
    Council:                  Alicia Johnson 
                                   Laura Speer 
                                   Tammy Mortenson 
                                   Amanda Castle 
                                   Fred Neal  
 

City Clerk, Karen Frawley read into the record how to participate in the virtual meeting.  
 

4. PROCLAMATION 
A. National Library Week 

 
5. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

There was no audience participation  
 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Johnson to 
approve the agenda as presented. The motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the April 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Mortenson 
to approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion passed with all voting in 
favor thereof. 
 



 

 

8.  COUNCIL MEMBERS-SWEARING IN/OATHS OF OFFICE 
A. New Council Member Installation/Oath of Office 

 
Judge Stewart administered the Oath of Office to Mayor Brian Rudy, Ward 1 
Council Member Laura Speer, Ward 2 Council Members Mark Clark and Tammy 
Mortenson, and Ward 3 Amanda Castle. 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Election of Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Mayor Rudy stated that Mayor Pro-Tem is elected the day that Council Members 
are sworn in. Mayor Pro-Tem is chosen by the rest of the City Council members 
on the first meeting to serve on a two-year term as Mayor Pro-Tem. Mayor Pro-
Tem fills in for the Mayor when the Mayor is absent. The Mayor Pro-Tem is a 
member of the task force with the Mayor and City Manager.  
 
Council Member Speer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Rudy to nominate 
Mark Clark as Mayor Pro-Tem. A roll call vote was performed, and the motion 
passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
B. Consideration of Approval of the Development Agreement for BestWay2Store 

 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that this item follows approval on 
December 17, 2019 where the City Council approved a special use permit for 
BestWay2Store, a storage facility that will be located on 37th Street.  
 
Anne Best Johnson, Community Development Director provided Council with a 
summary of the project. Staff has reviewed the development agreement and 
recommends approval of the development agreement for BestWay2Store. 
 
Council Member Speer asked if anything major has changed since staff first 
presented this, Anne replied that nothing has changed.  
 
Council Member Johnson stated that she recalls that applicant was supposed to 
phase in some buildings and wanted to know if that has changed. Dennis Rubba, 
applicant stated that plans are exactly how they were present in December with 
phasing in buildings later depending on market demand. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he looks forward to taking a tour once it is built 
and he wishes the applicant success.  
 
Council Member Castle stated that she is very excited and very in favor of this 
project. 
 
Council Member Mortenson stated that she is very excited to see this get 
developed and very happy that it will have the Amazon hub as well and she likes 
the options the applicant is bringing in. 
 
 



 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Clark stated that he is looking forward to this coming into Evans 
and according to residents, applicant has been really great to work with and 
looking forward to this coming in. 
 
Mayor Rudy echoed what the rest of Council stated, and he has been excited for 
it since staff originally presented it to Council.  

 
Council Member Mortenson made the motion, seconded by Council Member 
Johnson to approve the Development Agreement for BestWay2Store and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Development Agreement. A roll call vote was 
performed, and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
C. Consideration of Contract with Ditesco for 37th Street Overlay Project and 

Construction Management Services 
 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that at Council’s April 6th meeting Council 
held and executive session to hear about the challenges and complexities 
associated with the 37th Street Overlay Project. Staff is recommending that the 
city hire Ditesco Project and Construction Services to serve as an overseeing 
project manager starting with the design phase which we are in right now and 
also manage construction services and take the lead on the CDOT compliance to 
ensure that we are one-hundred percent compliant with CDOT requirements for 
the grant and assist the city with building the relationship with CDOT for future 
projects. Due to experience, knowledge of Evans, and trust on an important 
project like this, staff is recommending the sole source selection of Ditesco to 
oversee this project.  
 
Mayor Rudy stated that he worked with Keith and Ditesco on the Riverside Park 
project and was very involved in the 65th Avenue project at the end when the City 
was struggling and wants to speak for Ditesco and how great they are. Mayor 
Rudy is very much a supporter of Ditesco and in previous projects, they have 
saved the City money in the long run. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he has been impressed with Ditesco in the past 
and would like to emphasize that this project needs to be completed this year 
and the section in front of the school needs to be done before school is back in 
session and is very much in favor.  
 
Council Member Johnson stated that she is for bringing on Ditesco to assist with 
the project and wants to say that they have done a good job in past projects. 
Council Member Johnson wants to thank Ditesco for their flexibility and 
availability to the City. 
 
Council Member Castle stated that while she does not have direct experience 
working with Ditesco, she is looking forward to working with them and is in favor 
of this. 
 
Council Member Mortenson stated that she also does not have direct experience 
but has nothing to protest or go against this, so she is in favor. 



 

 

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark stated that Ditesco has done a phenomenal job with 
previous projects and is excited to have them on this one. Mayor Pro-Tem Clark 
stated that he does agree with Council Member Neal that this project needs to be 
done this year and deliver on the expectation of residents. 
 
Council Member Speer stated that she does like Ditesco and they have done a 
remarkable job for the City in the past, however, during the presentation staff 
stated that the design phase is taking place now on a project that was supposed 
to be done last year and wonders why this is being done this year when it was 
promised it would be done last year. Council Member Speer asked when the City 
was going to have the staff to be able to manage this and not have to 
consistently have the rely on outside management services. Council Member 
Speer stated that in looking at the contract, it appears that the City will pay 
Ditesco even if we don’t get funding from CDOT and has concern about the 
funding and how much the City will have to pay if the funding doesn’t come 
through.  
 
Jim Becklenberg addressed Council Member Speers concerns and questions 
regarding staff and the contract and funding.  
 
Keith Meyers, Ditesco addressed the Council stated that a scheduled has been 
built to ensure this project will be done this year and that there is a solid plan in 
place. Mayor Rudy commented about the section of the road in front of the 
school on 37th and stated that section needs to be complete before the kids go 
back to school. Keith stated that the goal will be to get that section completed 
prior to school. Keith stated that Ditesco has enjoyed the past projects and looks 
forward to working with the City again on this one.  
 
Council Member Speer wanted to clarify that she has full confidence in staff and 
she appreciates the work staff has done. 
 
Council Member Neal asked if testing of the samples that are being taken to 
determine if Geotech needs to be installed has been completed or if it is still 
ongoing. Mark Oberschmidt stated that the test has just been completed and the 
lab results are being analyzed.  
 
Council Member Castle made the motion, seconded by Council Member Neal to 
award the Professional Services Agreement for the 37th Street Overlay Project 
and Construction Management to Ditesco Project and Construction Services in 
the amount of $184,771, to authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Services 
Agreement and to approve a preliminary budget revision of $185,000 from the 
CIP Streets Fund to cover the cost of this contract. A roll call vote was 
performed, and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 

D. Consideration of Award of Bid: 2020 Asphalt Patch Project 
 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that this is the next piece of the 2020 
pavement management program.  



 

 

 
Mark Oberschmidt, City Engineer gave an overview of the project and the bid 
process. Staff is recommending awarding the 2020 Asphalt Patch Project 
contract to Colorado Paving Inc. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he is in favor of this and the more that the bad 
sections are improved before they become worse, the more cost effective it will 
be. 
 
Council Member Speer stated that she was extremely happy to hear that staff 
has gone out and looked at projects done by this company so we can gauge the 
quality of work being done. Council Member Speer stated that she is in favor. 
 
Council Member Castle stated that she appreciates the hard work that has been 
done and is in favor.  
 
Council Member Mortenson stated that she is in favor and is ready to see these 
sections of road being fixed.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark stated that he is in favor as well and wanted to clarify that 
this does not include any concrete work. Staff stated that this contract is 
specifically for asphalt patching only. 
 
Council Member Johnson stated that she is in favor and is excited that these 
areas are going to be worked on. 

 
Council Member Speer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Clark to 
award the 2020 Asphalt Patch Project Contract to Colorado Paving Inc. and to 
authorize the Mayor’s signature on an agreement in the amount of $400,000 and 
to further authorize the City Manager to approve additional pavement patching at 
the same unit prices, not to exceed a total project cost of $500,000 in the event 
that the City Council approves additional funding for this year’s pavement 
management work. A roll call vote was performed, and the motion passed with all 
voting in favor thereof. 

 
E. Consideration of Award of Bid: 2020 Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon 

Dewatering 
 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that this is the next year of the project 
started last year to the annual need to dewater or dredge the wastewater lagoon 
South of the wastewater plant.  
 
Assistant City Manager Randy Ready provided a summary of the project and 
recommended Council award the 2020 Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon 
Dewatering Project contract to Veris Environmental, LLC.  
 
Council Member Speer asked if this was for two out of the three lagoons? Robby 
Porsch, Wastewater Superintendent stated that these would be the retrofit 
lagoons directly South of the treatment plant. 



 

 

Council Member Neal stated that he appreciates the company is extending the 
2019 cost to complete this job. 
  
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Neal to 
award the 2020 Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon Dewatering Project 
Contract to Veris Environmental, LLC, and to authorize the Mayor’s signature on 
a contract in an amount not to exceed $250,000. A roll call vote was performed, 
and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
F. Consideration of Participation in Weld County Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program—Urban Entitlement—Weld County  
 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that this is an intergovernmental 
agreement that staff is seeking approval for and will take a super majority for this 
item to pass. This item, Council heard about at the last meeting and Council at 
that time expressed support of and direction for staff to bring back this IGA. Staff 
feels this would be good for Evans as Evans would be competing for money that 
comes from Weld County and competing against only Weld County jurisdictions. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark stated that he believes this will be a fantastic opportunity 
for the Evans community and is in favor of the agreement and asked for 
clarification on the motion. City Attorney Scott Krob provided clarification on the 
motion. 
 
Council Member Castle stated that she is in favor and it is fantastic. 
 
Council Member Johnson stated that it is a great opportunity and is in favor. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he is in favor of grants and this new designation 
sounds like Evans will have an opportunity to compete with a smaller amount of 
towns within the County instead of statewide and is in favor. 
 
Mayor Rudy stated that he agreed and that keeping it in Weld County is always 
beneficial for Evans.   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member 
Mortenson to approve the City’s participation in the Weld County CDBG program 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement. A roll call vote 
was performed, and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

G. Amendment of the City’s Electronic Participation Policy to Authorize City Council 
and Other City Boards, Commissions and Entities to Conduct Quasi-Judicial 
Proceedings During Emergency or Disaster Circumstances 

 

Scott Krob, City Attorney stated that in March, Council adopted the electronic 
participation policy that specifically prohibited quasi-judicial proceedings. As the 
pandemic has continued, staff has recognized the necessity to be able to hold 
quasi-judicial proceedings electronically so that things like proposals or liquor 
license applications will not be held up. The resolution presented includes an 



 

 

amended electronic participation policy that allows quasi-judicial hearings to be 
held electronically and provides the applicant an option to either hold the hearing 
electronically or postpone the hearing until it can be held in person. This process 
will be extended to other boards and commissions within the City that holds 
quasi-judicial proceedings including the Planning Commission, Zoning Board of 
Appeals, Evans Redevelopment Agency. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark asked if this policy amendment would allow him to 
participate electronically in this type of meeting if he is deployed and unable to 
attend in person or if this is strictly just in an emergency situation like now. Scott 
Krob stated that this is for emergency situations like we are in now. Once the 
pandemic is over and no longer in an emergency state and a Council Member 
was unable to attend meetings for an extended period of time, Council would 
need to authorize remote participation. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he realizes the need for this, however he likes 
for business to be conducted in person. 
 
Mayor Rudy stated that he sees the need for this, however he would like for 
Council to get back in the chambers just as soon as possible but will not do that 
until its safe. 

 
Council Member Johnson made the motion, seconded by Council Member Castle 
to approve Resolution Number 10-2020, amending the City’s electronic 
participation to allow quasi-judicial proceedings before City Council and other 
entities during emergency or disaster circumstances. A roll call vote was 
performed, and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

H. Ratification of Emergency 2020 Budget Actions 

 
Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that staff took action on this week with 
Council input but not full council action. The financial policies suggest that 
anytime budget is significantly modified especially with public programs like both 
of these do, it is best practice for Council to take formal action on those items. 
Staff contributed $20,000 to the Greeley Area Recovery Fund and also 
contributed $10,000 to the Cold Weather Shelter to keep the community safer. 
Staff reallocated funding from the Council budget line item that is designated as 
contributions.  
 
Mayor Rudy stated that he wanted to thank all Council Members and staff for 
handling these items so rapidly. This money is going directly to helping 
businesses within the City. Mayor Rudy stated that the Greeley Area Recovery 
Fund is still raising money and people can go to greeleyarearecoveryfund.org to 
donate and he wants to make sure that businesses know that this is grants that 
businesses can apply for not loans that will have to be paid back. 
 
Council Member Castle stated that she is glad to see the support from not only 
Evans but Greeley and the entire area and is on board. 
 



 

 

Council Member Johnson stated that she is in favor and excited that this is taking 
place and that Evans was included. Council Member Johnson also stated that 
she would like to see a model created for use in future emergencies. 
 
Council Member Neal stated that he is in favor of the donation and glad that this 
will be going to for grants and not loans. 
 
Council Member Mortenson stated that she is glad that we have something that 
we can contribute and is in favor of it. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Clark stated that he is in favor of this and it is fantastic 
opportunity and he is looking forward to it. 
 
Council Member Speer stated that she is in favor of it. 

 
Council Member Mortenson made the motion, seconded by Council Member 
Johnson to approve the emergency budget actions to support the Greeley Area 
Recovery Fund and the Cold Weather Shelter. A roll call vote was performed, 
and the motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 

10. REPORTS 
A. City Manager 
 

Mr. Becklenberg informed the Council that staff has been in contact with 
Innovative Foods after the fire that occurred earlier this week and there is hope 
that this will not be a total loss. Thanks to the idea by Council Member Johnson, 
staff wants to send a card from the City to the owners expressing our sympathy 
and support and would like as many Council Members to sign the card as 
possible. Mr. Becklenberg stated that he wants to thank Council for working 
through this long agenda remotely and wanted to thank staff for helping keep 
business moving along during these circumstances and difficult environment.  

 
B. City Attorney 

 
Mr. Scott Krob informed the Council that he wanted to echo what Jim said and 
stated that Council should have received a memo from him that summarizes the 
directives with COVID-19 and provided a summary of new executive orders that 
may have an effect on the City.   

 
11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

There was no audience participation  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:41 p.m. 
 
 

 


